
 

 

Agenda 

 

Board of Directors 
 

Friday, February 7, 2020 

Following CAA Finance Committee Meeting 

Kent County Commission Chambers 

300 Monroe Avenue, NW, Grand Rapids, MI 
 

 

1. Call to Order          Steve Heacock 

 

2. Minutes of January 10, 2020        Action 

 

3. Committee Reports 

  

A. Operations Committee 

i. Experience Grand Rapids Update     Mary Manier  

      

 B. Finance Committee 

  i. Consolidated Financial Statement for Period Ending   Action 

   December 31, 2019 

  ii. SMG December 2019 Financial Statements –    Information 

   DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena® 

  Iii Second Quarter Capital Update      Information 

  iv. Auto Parking System Periodic Reporting    Information 

       

4. Third Amendment to Memorandum of Agreement with Wine &    Action 

 Food Festival, LLC 

 

5. Amendment to Marketing Services Agreement       Action 

 

6. Resolution Approving Annual Contribution to Deferred Compensation Plan  Action 

 

7. Resolution Approving and Authorizing Execution of Addendum I to   Action  

 Amendment to Lease Agreement with Amway Hotel Corporation 

 

8. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars       Rich MacKeigan  

 

9. Public Comment 

 

10. CAA Board Member Comments 

 

11. Adjournment  

 

Next Meeting Date:  Friday, April 3, 2020 



MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY  

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

300 MONROE AVENUE, NW | GRAND RAPIDS, MI 

Friday, January 10, 2020 

 
 

Attendance  
  

Members Present:  Steve Heacock, Chairperson 
   Rosalynn Bliss 
   Lew Chamberlin 
   Birgit Klohs 
   Charlie Secchia 
   Richard Winn 
 
Members Absent: Floyd Wilson, Jr.  
    

 Staff/Others:  Wayman Britt   Kent County 
    Hilarie Carpenter  ASM Global 
    Tim Gortsema   Grand Rapids Griffins 
    Chris Knape   K Corner Consulting 
    Mary Manier   Experience Grand Rapids 
    Brian McVicar   The Grand Rapids Press/MLive 
    Doug Small   Experience Grand Rapids 
    Emily Syrewicz   Opera Grand Rapids  
    Eddie Tadlock   ASM Global 
    Brad Thomas   Progressive AE 
    John Van Houten  Progressive AE 
    Susan Waddell   CAA 
    Richard Wendt   Dickinson Wright 
   

1. Call to Order  

 

Chairperson, Steve Heacock, called the meeting to order at 8:01 a.m.  Secretary/Treasurer, Richard Winn, 
recorded the meeting minutes.  Chair Heacock amended the agenda to include a Proof of Concept Task 
Force Update, as item 3A.  
 
2. Minutes of Prior Meeting 

 

Motion by Mr. Chamberlin, support by Ms. Bliss, to approve the December 6, 2019, Minutes.  Motion 

carried. 

 

3. Election of Officers 

 

Motion by Mr. Chamberlin, support by Mr. Secchia, to elect the slate of officers as recommended:  

Chairperson-Steve Heacock; Vice Chairperson-Birgit Klohs; and Secretary/Treasurer-Richard Winn, for 

terms expiring January 2022.  Motion carried. 

 

3A. Proof of Concept Task Force Update 
 
Mr. Chris Knape reported that the Task Force has re-engaged HVS to update its feasibility study based on 
new assumptions and new data.  HVS anticipates providing the update later this month.  The Task Force  
 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
January 10, 2020 – 2 

 
 
is working with CitiGroup on an updated financial model based on the new data.  Next steps include 
setting up informational sessions with City and County leadership.  Chair Heacock stated that a small 
contingent visited the Columbus, Ohio hotel and convention center.  The Columbus convention center has 
several unique amenities that we may incorporate.  The hotel has 1,500 rooms and they are adding a 500-
room tower on top of the convention center, a model like what we are planning.  Mayor Bliss requested a 
status update on the amphitheater.  Chair Heacock stated that the Task Force is considering possible 
locations and project partners.  The Task Force has looked at potential sites suggested by the City, the 
County, and the Right Place.  The project may not require bonding by the City or County; however, CAA 
reserves would likely be needed to help finance the project.   
 

4. Committee Reports 

 
A. Operations Committee 

 
Mr. Chamberlin stated that there was nothing new or additional to report.   
 
 B. Finance Committee 

 

  i. Acceptance of November 2019 Consolidated Financial Statement 
 
Mr. Winn presented the consolidated financial report for the period ended November 30, 2019.  The 
dashboard showed that 16 concerts generated $1,366,825 in event revenue, an increase of +7.6% from 
prior year (14 concerts) of $1,270,756.  The budget summary shows that net proceeds of $910,094 
increased by +8.2% from prior year of $841,066.  Convention/trade show business generated $885,144 in 
event revenue, a decrease of (26.6%) from prior year (attendance decreased from 63,434 to 55,613) of 
$1.205,229.  The budget summary shows that net proceeds of +$26,982 decreased by (92.4%) from prior 
year net proceeds of +$354,320.  Several board members asked for information and analysis regarding the 
apparent decrease in activity at DeVos Place.  Since no one who could answer the question was in 
attendance, the information will be provided to the Directors at or prior to the next meeting.   
 
 
Motion:  Mr. Winn, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to accept the November 2019 Consolidated 

Financial Statements.  Motion carried. 
 
  ii. SMG August 2019 Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place®  
   Financial Statements 
 
The SMG financial statements were included in the agenda packet as information items.   
 
5. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars 

 

Mr. Tadlock presented an update on the calendar of events scheduled for the buildings.   
 
6. Public Comment 
 
None. 
 
 

 

 

 

 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
January 10, 2020 – 3 

 

 

 

7. CAA Board Member Comments 

 

Chair Heacock will be sending Board members an email seeking input on Rich MacKeigan’s annual 
performance review, as required by 2018 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan.   
 

8. Adjournment 

 
The meeting adjourned at 8:35 a.m.  The next CAA Board meeting is Friday, February 7, 2020.   
 
 
 
 

     ______________________________________   
Richard A. Winn, Recording Secretary 



Page

Dashboard 1

Summary by Facility

Rolling Forecast 2

Year-to-Date Comparable 3

Trend Analysis 

Monthly Net Operating Proceeds - FY19 & FY20 4

Lagging 12 Months Net Operating Proceeds 5

Significant Notes 6

Administrative Accounts

Year-to-Date Comparable 7

Special Accounts - Amphitheater Project 8

Grand Rapids-Kent County

Convention/Arena Authority

Consolidated Financial Report

December 31, 2019



Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual

Events 38                 37                 45                   17                   19                  19                           

Attendance 268,879        282,800        282,277          148,925          160,000         156,293                  

Event Income 1,854,416$   2,274,052$   1,998,308$     1,573,557$     1,831,295$    1,629,419$             

Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual

Events 255               259               262                 97                   88                  68                           

Attendance 250,238        270,650        240,817          74,834            86,050           68,613                    

Event Income 3,002,604$   3,099,967$   2,973,848$     1,380,228$     1,245,800$    1,097,583$             

Prior Year Budget Actual

Operating Income (Loss) 1,273,091$     1,062,536$    529,617$                

Capital/Repair/Replacement (1,905,297)     (2,095,851)     (1,890,532)             

Net - To/(From) on Fund Balance (632,206)$      (1,033,315)$   (1,360,915)$           
(1)

*NOTES: (1):

      Unrestricted Fund Balance (preliminary) @ June 30, 2019 24,268,985$   

Consolidated

All Events Concert

All Events Convention/Trade

Van Andel Arena®

Financial Dashboard

Year-To-Date (6 Months)

December 31, 2019

DeVos Place®

-1-



FY 2019

7/1 - 12/31

Year-to-Date Roll Estimate
(1)

Budget Prior Year

Van Andel Arena

   Operating - Revenues 3,218,911$       3,320,586$      6,539,497$      6,261,150$      8,797,609$     

                    - Expenses - Facilities (2,060,285)       (2,392,500)       (4,452,785)       (4,467,311)       (4,523,497)     

                               - Base Management Fees (89,631)            (89,632)           (179,263)          (179,969)          (176,440)        

                               - Incentive Fee -                       (125,497)          (125,497)          (118,412)          (196,210)        

   Net Operating Income (Loss) 1,068,995        712,957           1,781,952        1,495,458        3,901,462      -  

   Parking 181,410           209,590           391,000           409,000           368,000         

   Pedestrian Safety (38,338)            (100,662)          (139,000)          (97,400)           (130,605)        

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 1,212,067        821,885           2,033,952        1,807,058        4,138,857      

DeVos Place Convention Center

   Operating - Revenues 3,010,083        4,030,903        7,040,986        6,697,333        7,306,195      

                   - Expenses - Facilities (3,374,284)       (3,359,312)       (6,733,596)       (6,672,635)       (7,107,159)     

                              - Base Management Fees (89,631)            (89,632)           (179,263)          (179,969)          (176,440)        

                              - Incentive Fee -                       (232,729)          (232,729)          (241,526)          (151,879)        

   Net Operating Income (Loss) (453,832)          349,230           (104,602)          (396,797)          (129,283)        

   Parking 488,771           643,229           1,132,000        1,285,730        1,336,967      

   Pedestrian Safety (16,273)            (42,727)           (59,000)           (51,500)           (63,017)          

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP 18,666             949,732           968,398           837,433           1,144,667      

Other

   Revenues 266,012           473,988           740,000           685,750 651,353         
(3)

   Expenses (967,128)          (581,160)          (1,548,288)       (1,637,828)       (974,663)        

     Net Other (701,116)          (107,172)          (808,288)          (952,078)          (323,310)        

Total Net Proceeds/Operating 529,617           1,664,445        2,194,062        1,692,413        4,960,214      

Capital/Repair Expenditures (1,890,532)       (2,899,054)       (4,789,586)       (4,994,905)       
(2)

(4,294,340)     

Results Net of Capital/Repair Expenditures (1,360,915)$     (1,234,609)$     (2,595,524)$     (3,302,492)$     665,874$       

Notes:
(1)

 Third quarter updated full-year estimate provided at the May 1st Board meeting.
(2)

 Includes budget amendment to provide for several capital project balances carried over from FY 19.  See June 2019

    consolidated financial report for details. 

(3) Excludes 4/4/19 deposit of $5 million grant proceeds from State of Michigan.  

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary by Facility/Other

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

FY 2020

-2-



Annual Year-To-Date

Change Change

FY 2019 FY 2020 Positive FY 2019 FY 2020 Positive

Final Budget (Negative) 7/1-12/31 7/1 - 12/31 (Negative)

Van Andel Arena

   Operating - Revenues 8,797,609$    6,261,150$     (28.8) 3,136,866$     3,218,911$       2.6

                    - Expenses - Facilities (4,523,497)     (4,467,311)      1.2 (2,056,641)      (2,060,285)        (0.2)

                               - Base Management Fees (176,440)        (179,969)         (2.0) (88,220)           (89,631)             (1.6)              

                               - Incentive Fee (196,210)        (118,412)         39.7             -                      -                        -                 

   Net Operating Income (Loss) 3,901,462      1,495,458       (61.7)            992,005          1,068,995         7.8

   Parking 368,000         409,000          11.1 170,082          181,410            6.7               

   Pedestrian Safety (130,605)        (97,400)           25.4 (21,102)           (38,338)             (81.7)            

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 4,138,857      1,807,058       (56.3) 1,140,985       1,212,067         6.0               

DeVos Place Convention Center

   Operating - Revenues 7,306,195      6,697,333       (8.3)              3,026,559       3,010,083         (0.5)

                   - Expenses - Facilities (7,107,159)     (6,672,635)      6.1 (3,206,052)      (3,374,284)        (5.2)

                              - Base Management Fees (176,440)        (179,969)         (2.0) (88,220)           (89,631)             (1.6)              

                              - Incentive Fee (151,879)        (241,526)         (59.0)            -                      -                        -                 

   Net Operating Income (Loss) (129,283)        (396,797)         (206.9) (267,713)         (453,832)           (69.5)            

   Parking 1,336,967      1,285,730       (3.8) 544,615          488,771            (10.3)            

   Pedestrian Safety (63,017)          (51,500)           18.3             (10,929)           (16,273)             (48.9)            

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP 1,144,667      837,433          (26.8) 265,973          18,666              (93.0)            

Other

   Revenues 651,353         685,750 5.3 221,759          266,012            20.0             

   Expenses (974,663)        (1,637,828)      (68.0) (355,627)         (967,128)           (172.0)          

     Net Other (323,310)        (952,078)         (194)             (133,868)         (701,116)           (423.7)          

Total Net Proceeds/Operating 4,960,214      1,692,413       (65.9)            1,273,090       529,617            (58.4)            

Capital/Repair Expenditures (4,294,340)     (4,994,905)      (16.3) (1,905,297)      (1,890,532)        (1.3)              

Results Net of Capital Expenditures 665,874$       (3,302,492)$    (496.0)          (632,207)$       (1,360,915)$      (115.3)          

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Budget Summary by Facility/Other

Financial Trends for Year Ending June 30, 2020

-3-



-4-



-5-



Van Andel Arena®

      Page 1 - Nineteen concerts generated $1,629,419 in event revenue, an increase of +3.6% from

prior year (17 concerts) of $1,573,557.

        Page 3 - Net proceeds of $1,212,067 increased by +6.0% from prior year of $1,140,985.

DeVos Place®

      Page 1 - Convention/trade show business generated $1,097,583 in event revenue, a

decrease of (20.5%) from prior year (attendance decreased from 74,834 to 68,613) of $1,380,228.

        Page 3 - Net "proceeds" of +$18,666 decreased by (93.0%) from prior year Net Proceeds

of +$265,974.

Significant Notes

-6-



Change Change

FY 2019 FY 2020 Positive FY 2019 FY 2020 Positive

Final Budget (Negative) 7/1-12/31 7/1/-12/31 (Negative)

Other

Revenues

Interest/Capital Contr. 580,124$     
('1)

564,750$     (2.7)              221,759$         266,012$       20.0             

Miscellaneous 71,229         121,000       69.9             -                      -                     -                 

651,353       685,750       5.2               221,759           266,012         20.0             

Expenses

Marketing (CVB/Sports) 200,000       200,000       -                 66,667             66,667           -                 

Diversity Initiative 231,339       275,000       (18.9)            12,331             131,205         (964.0)          

Wages/Benefits 144,774       148,815       (2.8)              56,587             56,589           -                 

Professional Services 69,606         80,000         (14.9)            32,535             54,992           (69.0)            

DID Assessment 62,616         64,500         (3.0)              62,616             65,284           (4.3)              

Food & Beverage Repairs 14,095         40,000         (183.8)          -                      -                     -                 

Consulting Services 159,794       689,513       
('2)

(331.5)          55,187             537,673         (874.3)          

Landscaping 26,134         25,000         4.3               11,340             11,785           (3.9)              

Procurement of Art 26,904         30,000         (11.5)            26,214             2,105             (92.0)            

Insurance 21,457         25,000         (16.5)            21,457             23,676           (10.3)            

Supplies/Other 17,944         60,000         (234.3)          10,693             17,152           (60.4)            

974,663       1,637,828    (68.0)            355,627           967,128         (172.0)          

Net Proceeds - Operating (323,310)$    (952,078)$    (194.5)          (133,868)$       (701,116)$      (423.7)          

Notes:
(1)

 Excludes 4/4/19 deposit of $5 million grant proceeds from the State of Michigan.
(2)

 SMG-$54,290, $50,000 DVP long-term capital study, and hotel project manager/other project consultants-$85,223,

     and $500,000-Proof of Concept Task Force - including the engagement of architects, costing experts, and geological experts.

Actual

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Administrative Accounts

Net Other Detail

Annual

December 31, 2019

-7-



Revenues:

State of Michigan Grant 5,000,000$   

Expenses: -                   

Net Balance 5,000,000$   

NOTES:

- MEDC Grant - West Michigan Amphitheater

-Grant Period: 1/1/19- 1/31/21

- Grant Activities: "Park/Playground Improvements"

-Interest credited to the operating account

4/4/19 to 12/31/19

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Special Accounts

Amphitheater Project

Revenues/Expenses

-8-



































Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Van Andel Arena/DeVos Place

Capital Budget 2020
J. Oppenneer

ROLLING FORCAST AS OF December 31, 2019

Actual Estimated Estimated Estimated (Over)Under Estimated

Item # Project Budget Thru 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th quarter Total 2019 Budget Carry to 2020

CARRYOVER

6200.25 Aisle Lights to LED -$                    -$                 

6200.27 New Roof 89,952.00$          89,952.00$         89,952.00$         -$                 

6200.32 Landscaping 440,148.50$        440,148.50$       440,148.50$       -$                 

6200.35B Security Office & Lobby Changes 4,211.06$            4,211.06$           4,211.06$           -$                 

6200.36 Airwall Fabric Replacement 71,485.00$          71,485.00$         71,485.00$         -$                 

6200.37 Elevator Modernization 53,055.00$          18,500.00$         23,173.00$      41,673.00$         11,382.00$      

6200.41 OSHA Safety Changes 23,426.00$          23,426.00$         23,426.00$         -$                 

6200.44 New Computers 64,227.33$          1,761.41$           1,761.41$           62,465.92$      

6200.45 New Phone System 144,918.54$        7,792.00$           137,126.54$    144,918.54$       -$                 

DE VOS PLACE

Additional Furniture 50,000.00$          16,757.00$         795.07$           32,447.93$        50,000.00$         -$                 

Carpet: Keeler Lobby 54,300.00$          27,150.00$      27,150.00$        54,300.00$         -$                 

Carpet: Performance Hall 289,280.00$        144,640.00$    144,640.00$      289,280.00$       -$                 

Carpet: Chase Boardroom 26,020.00$          26,020.00$        26,020.00$         -$                 

Airwall Fabric Replacement 70,000.00$          44,950.00$         42,015.00$        86,965.00$         (16,965.00)$     

Lyon Dock 4 Door Replacement 50,000.00$          41,165.00$         41,165.00$         8,835.00$        

Projection Theater Upgrades 200,000.00$        200,000.00$      200,000.00$       -$                 

OSHA Safety Changes 75,000.00$          59,826.00$      15,174.00$        75,000.00$         -$                 

Fly Rail System (Design) 250,000.00$        35,738.33$         11,761.67$      202,500.00$      250,000.00$       -$                 

Lyon Street Landscaping 400,000.00$        400,000.00$      400,000.00$       -$                 

Trash Compactor 45,000.00$          46,175.00$         46,175.00$         (1,175.00)$       Done

New Directional Screens 75,000.00$          47,747.50$         14,367.50$      62,115.00$         12,885.00$      

New Pads for Banquet Chairs 30,000.00$          30,000.00$      30,000.00$         -$                 

Exhibit Hall Lighting & Controls 700,000.00$        562,108.60$       10,000.00$      572,108.60$       127,891.40$    Done

New Small Motor Equipment 50,000.00$          36,671.65$         13,328.35$        50,000.00$         -$                 

VAN ANDEL ARENA

Suite Refresher 400,000.00$        200,000.00$    200,000.00$      400,000.00$       -$                 

Locker Room Upgrades 1,013,881.50$      373,796.72$       340,000.00$    300,084.78$      1,013,881.50$     -$                 

Security Upgrades 50,000.00$          11,350.54$      38,649.46$        50,000.00$         -$                 

Skywalk: HVAC 275,000.00$        28,146.34$         175,000.00$    71,853.66$        275,000.00$       -$                 

-$                    -$                 

-$                    -$                 

TOTALS 4,994,904.93$      1,890,532.11$    1,185,190.32$  1,713,863.18$   4,789,585.61$     205,319.32$    -$                  



 
 

Memorandum 
 

To:  Richard A. Winn, Finance Committee Chairperson 

  CAA Board 

 

From:  Robert White 

   

Subject: Auto Parking System Periodic Reporting 

   

Date:  January 15, 2020 

 

 
The previously (6/9/17) adopted “Parking Operation Agreement” requires the City-Auto Parking 
System to provide a quarterly report regarding City/County utilization of discounted DeVos 
Place® monthly parking passes.  The content of this second quarter (FY20) periodic report 
includes the following information: 
 
 A) “… the number of current City and County passes outstanding …” 
 
  The City currently holds 125 monthly passes. 
  The County currently holds 161 monthly passes. 
 
 B) “… the increase and/or decrease in such City and County passes since the prior 
report …” 
 
  The City increased the number of passes out by 2 between 10/1/19 and 12/31/19. 
  The County number of passes out remained unchanged between 10/1/19 and  
  12/31/19.   
 
 C) “… a calculation of the difference between the then current market rate for 
monthly passes for the Parking Spaces and the then current rate for monthly passes by the City 
and County.” 
 
  The current (public) monthly pass rate is $154, while the discounted 
   City/County rate is $55.25. 
  The City currently holds 125 passes with a total annualized discount of $148,125. 
  The County currently holds 161 passes with a total annualized discount of   
   $190,785. 
 
Attached with this correspondence is a copy of the quarterly report from City-Auto Parking 
System.   
 
 
Cc: Richard MacKeigan 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Account 

 

Previous 

End of 

Quarter 

Space Count 

Q2 FY19 

 

Total Spaces 

End of Q3  

FY 19 

 

Space Count 

Change 

 

Current 

Monthly 

Market Rate 

Price 

Difference 

EOQ* 

 

Monthly Price 

Difference 

Variance, Prev 

Quarter 

17th Circuit 
Court 

 
24 

 
24 

 
0 

 
 $2,370.00 

 

$0.00 

KC Facilities 
Management 

 
137 

 
137 

 
0 

 
$13,528.75 

 

$0.00 

City of GR 123 125 2 $12,146.25 $197.50 

Total 284 286 2 $28,045.00 $197.50 

 
*Current Market Rate is $154 monthly, City/County Contractual Rate is $55.25 monthly, 
effective 7/1/2019.   
 
 
 



GRAND RAPIDS–KENT COUNTY 

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

WITH WINE & FOOD FESTIVAL, LLC RELATED TO PROMOTION OF 

THE GRAND RAPIDS INTERNATIONAL WINE, BEER AND FOOD 

FESTIVAL 

 

Boardmember _______________, supported by Boardmember _____________, moved 

the adoption of the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the “CAA”) 

controls and operates DeVos Place (the “Facility”); and 

WHEREAS, Wine & Food Festival, LLC (“WFF”) was formed by Show Michigan 

Corporation d/b/a ShowSpan, Inc. (“ShowSpan”) to promote and provide an annual wine, beer and 

food event at the Facility; and. 

WHEREAS, the CAA and WFF have previously co-promoted and co-owned an annual 

wine, beer and food event at the Facility known as the “Grand Rapids International Wine, Beer & 

Food Festival” pursuant to a Memorandum of Understanding (the “Agreement”) dated as of 

September 15, 2008, and extended term of the Agreement to and through March 31, 2019, pursuant 

to a First Amendment to Memorandum of Understanding dated February 6, 2012 and a Second 

Amendment to Memorandum of Understanding dated as of April 1, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the CAA and WFF have determined to extend the term of the Agreement for 

an additional three years pursuant to a Third Amendment to Memorandum of Understanding (the 

“Third Amendment”). 



-2- 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 1. That the Third Amendment in the form presented at this meeting is approved and 

the Chairman is authorized and directed to execute the Third Amendment for and on behalf of the 

CAA. 

 2. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the 

provisions of this resolution be and the same are rescinded. 

YEAS:  Boardmembers           

 

              

 

NAYS: Boardmembers           

 

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers           

 

ABSENT: Boardmembers           

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

Dated:  February 7, 2020 

         

 Susan M. Waddell 

 Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

 I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager of the Grand Rapids-

Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA"), do hereby certify that the foregoing is a 

true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the CAA at a meeting 

held on February 7, 2020, and that public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to Act 267 of 

the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended. 

 

Dated:  February 7, 2020         

 Susan M. Waddell 

 Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary 
 



1/27/2020 RXW 

-1- 

 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 

 

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT TO UNDERSTANDING (the “Third Amendment”) 

dated as of April 1, 2019, is entered into by the GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY 

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY, a statutory authority created pursuant to Section 203 

of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1999 (the “CAA”), with offices located at 303 Monroe Avenue, 

N.W., Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503, and WINE & FOOD FESTIVAL, LLC, a Michigan 

limited liability company (“WFF”), with offices at 2121 Celebration Drive, N.E., Grand Rapids, 

Michigan  49525. 

RECITALS 

 

A. The CAA and WFF previously entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (the 

“Agreement”) dated as of September 15, 2008, to co-provide and co-own an annual wine and food 

event which, in additional to wineries now includes breweries and distilleries (the “WBF Event”) 

at DeVos Place (the “Facility”). 

B. The initial term of the Agreement was three years ending March 31, 2011, and was 

extended an additional year by mutual agreement ending March 31, 2012. 

C. The CAA and WFF also previously entered into (i) a First Amendment to 

Memorandum of Understanding dated February 6, 2012, that extended the term of the Agreement 

through and to March 31, 2016 and (ii) a Second Amendment to Memorandum of Understanding 

dated as of April 1, 2016, that extended the term of the Agreement through an d to March 31, 2019. 

D. The CAA and WFF have agreed to extend the Agreement term an additional three 

years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits each receives pursuant to this 

Third Amendment and the Agreement, the CAA and WFF agree as follows: 

1. Extension of Term.  The term of the Agreement is extended an additional three 

years ending March 31, 2022.  The parties agree to co-promote the WBF Event at the Facility 

annually during the 2019, 2020 and 2021 calendar year in accordance with the terms and conditions 

of the Agreement. 

2. Ratification.  The Agreement is in all other respects ratified and confirmed. 

 



-2- 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CAA and WFF have signed this Third Amendment 

effective as of the date set forth in the introductory paragraph hereof. 

 

       GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY 

       CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

 

 

       By:         

        Steven R. Heacock, Chairman 

 

       WINE & FOOD FESTIVAL, LLC 

 

 

       By:         

        John D. Loeks, Member 

 
 



GRAND RAPIDS–KENT COUNTY 

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF 

2019/2020 AMENDMENT TO MARKETING SERVICES AGREEMENT 

WITH THE GRAND RAPIDS/KENT COUNTY CONVENTION AND 

VISITORS BUREAU 

Boardmember _______________, supported by Boardmember _____________, moved 

the adoption of the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, THE Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the “CAA”) 

and the Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention and Visitors Bureau (the “CVB”) entered into a 

Marketing Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated as of July 1, 2009, pursuant to which the 

CVB is to market CAA operated facilities as sites for hosting conventions, seminars, business 

meetings, trade shows and similar activities and events; and 

WHEREAS, the CAA and CVB have agreed to amend the Agreement pursuant to a 

2019/2020 Amendment to Marketing Services Agreement (the “2019/2020 Amendment”), related 

to the compensation to be received by the CVB from CAA from performing the Services as 

described in the Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 1. That the 2019/2020 Amendment in the form presented at this meeting is approved 

and the CAA Executive Director is authorized and directed to execute the 2019/2020 Amendment 

for and on behalf of the CAA. 

 2. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the 

provisions of this resolution be and the same are rescinded. 



-2- 

 

YEAS:  Boardmembers           

 

              

 

NAYS: Boardmembers           

 

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers           

 

ABSENT: Boardmembers           

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

Dated:  February 7, 2020 

         

 Susan M. Waddell 

 Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

 I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager of the Grand Rapids-

Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA"), do hereby certify that the foregoing is a 

true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the CAA at a meeting 

held on February 7, 2020, and that public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to Act 267 of 

the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended. 

 

Dated:  February 7, 2020         

 Susan M. Waddell 

 Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary 
 



1 
 

2019/2020 AMENDMENT TO MARKETING 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS 2019/2020 AMENDMENT TO MARKETING SERVICES AGREEMENT (the 
“2019/2020 Amendment”) made as of July 1, 2019, between the GRAND RAPIDS-KENT 

COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY, a Michigan authority created pursuant to 
Act 203 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1999, as amended (the “CAA”) and the GRAND 

RAPIDS/KENT COUNTY CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU, a Michigan non-
profit corporation (the “CVB”). 

RECITALS 

A. The CAA and the CVB entered into a Marketing Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) 
dated as of July 1, 2009, pursuant to which the CVB is to market the Van Andel Arena, 
DeVos Performance Hall and DeVos Place Convention Center as sites for hosting 
conventions, seminars, business meetings, trade shows and similar activities and events. 

B. The Agreement describes the method for the CAA to compensate the CVB for the services 
to be performed as described in the Agreement. 

C. The Agreement provides that it shall automatically be extended for successive one-year 
terms with such modifications as agreed to in writing with CAA and CVB. 

D. The CAA and CVB have agreed to modify the Agreement with respect to compensation to 
the CVB for services it performs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the CAA and CVB agree, in consideration for their respective 
representations and conditions contained in the Agreement, as follows: 

Section 1.  Amendment to Section 2 of Agreement.  Section 2 of the Agreement is 
amended in its entirety to read as follows: 

 Section 2.  Payment of the Payment Amount and 

Additional Payment Amount.  Upon approval of the Action Plan 
for a fiscal year by the CAA, Executive Director as provided in 
Section 1 hereof, the CAA shall pay the DVB $133,334 for such 
fiscal year (the “Payment Amount”), to assist in implementation of 
the Action Plan.  In addition, the CAA shall pay the CVB an 
additional $66,666 (the “Additional Payment Amount”), if the CVB 
initiated hotel/motel bookings exceeding the 90,000 room/night 
benchmark by 5% or greater for the annual period commencing on 
January 1 prior to the applicable fiscal year and ending 
December 31, during the fiscal year (e.g. January 1, 2019 through 
December 31, 2019 for FY 2019/2020) as documented to the 
satisfaction of the CAA Executive Director. 



2 
 

Section 2.  Ratification.  Except as otherwise amended by this 2019/2020 Amendment, 
the Agreement is hereby ratified and confirmed including its automatic extension of a one-year 
term beginning July 1, 2019, to and including June 30, 2020. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CAA and CVB have caused these presents to be signed 
by their respective duly authorized person as of the day and year first written above. 

 
GRAND RAPIDS – KENT COUNTY 

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

By:         
 Richard MacKeigan 
 Executive Director 
 
 
 
GRAND RAPIDS/KENT COUNTY 

CONVENTION AND VISITORS 

BUREAU 

 

 

 

By:        
 Douglas Small 
 President 



GRAND RAPIDS–KENT COUNTY 

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ANNUAL CONTRIBUTION TO THE 

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

2018 NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN FOR 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019 

Boardmember _______________, supported by Boardmember _____________, moved 

the adoption of the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the “CAA”) 

established the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority 2018 Nonqualified 

Deferred Compensation Plan (the “Plan”) of which Richard MacKeigan (“MacKeigan”) is the sole 

participant; and 

WHEREAS, even though the CAA prefunded the Plan, as permitted, the Plan requires that 

for each of the Plan’s five years, the Board credit a contribution of $40,000 to MacKeigan’s 

account provided the Board of Directors of the CAA has determined that MacKeigan has fulfilled 

his obligations as identified in the Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

1. That it is determined that MacKeigan has fulfilled his obligations for the CAA’s 

fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, by (a) performing the duties and responsibilities identified in the 

Plan as set forth in the attached Attachment I and (b) performing such other specific duties and 

tasks assigned to him by the Board. 

2. That a contribution of $40,000 shall be credited to MacKeigan’s account. 

3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the 

provisions of this resolution be and the same are rescinded. 



-2- 
 

YEAS:  Boardmembers           
 
              
 
NAYS: Boardmembers           
 
ABSTAIN: Boardmembers           
 
ABSENT: Boardmembers           
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

Dated:  February 7, 2020 
         
 Susan M. Waddell 
 Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

 I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager of the Grand Rapids-
Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA"), do hereby certify that the foregoing is a 
true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the CAA at a meeting 
held on February 7, 2020, and that public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to Act 267 of 
the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended. 
 
Dated:  February 7, 2020         
 Susan M. Waddell 
 Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary 
  



-3- 
 

ATTACHMENT I 

 
Duties and Responsibilities 

 

 

 Act on behalf of the CAA during discussions/negotiations regarding property used by the 
CAA or to be acquired or utilized by the CAA. 

 Identify and develop Board workshops, networking and other opportunities to increase the 
CAA’s effectiveness. 

 Coordinate the strengthening of relationships of the CAA with the City of Grand Rapids, 
Kent County and the State of Michigan and at the federal government level, as appropriate. 

 Oversee the CAA’s parking operations at the Facilities. 

 Assess, prioritize and develop CAA produced events to be held at the Facilities. 

 Oversee the CAA Administrative Manager and other CAA employees and contracted 
personnel. 

 Identify, prioritize and assist in the development of long range strategic policy initiatives. 

 Work with the CAA public relations consultant to positively present the CAA to the media 
and the public generally. 

 Represent the CAA on community boards, groups and committees. 

 Review and approve invoices for CAA contracted services. 

 Assist in the application and administration of governmental grants. 

 Assist the auditors in the completion of the CAA’s annual audit. 

 Work with the CAA’s community inclusion group in the development and promotion of 
the CAA’s Diversity Mission Statement. 

 Work on special projects as designated by the CAA such as the amphitheater, wine and 
food festival and the CAA’s involvement in ArtPrize. 

 Assist the CAA Board in its periodic review of the booking policies for the Facilities. 

 Services relative to CAA efforts and consideration of expansion of the Convention Center, 
hotel development and other destination initiatives. 



GRAND RAPIDS–KENT COUNTY 

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF 

ADDENDUM I TO AMENDMENT TO GRAND RAPIDS CIVIC 

AUDITORIUM AND CONVENTION ENTERTAINMENT CENTER 

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH AMWAY HOTEL CORPORATION 

Boardmember _______________, supported by Boardmember _____________, moved 

the adoption of the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the “CAA”) 

and the Amway Hotel Corporation (“AHC”) entered into an Amendment to Grand Rapids Civic 

Auditorium and Convention Entertainment Center Lease Agreement (the “Amendment”) dated 

December 11, 2003; and 

WHEREAS, the term of the Lease Agreement was amended by the Amendment to extend 

its term to April 15, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the CAA and the AHC have agreed to extend the term of the Lease 

Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

1. That Addendum I to Amendment to Grand Rapids Civic Auditorium and 

Convention Entertainment Center Lease Agreement (“Addendum I”) between the CAA and AHC 

extending the term of the Lease Agreement to and including June 30, 2020, in the form presented 

at this meeting is approved and the Board Chairperson is authorized and directed to execute 

Addendum I for and on behalf of the CAA. 



-2- 

 

 2. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the 

provisions of this resolution be and the same are rescinded. 

YEAS:  Boardmembers           

 

              

 

NAYS: Boardmembers           

 

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers           

 

ABSENT: Boardmembers           

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

Dated:  February 7, 2020 

         

 Susan M. Waddell 

 Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

 I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager of the Grand Rapids-

Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA"), do hereby certify that the foregoing is a 

true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the CAA at a meeting 

held on February 7, 2020, and that public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to Act 267 of 

the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended. 

 

Dated:  February 7, 2020         

 Susan M. Waddell 

 Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary 
 



ADDENDUM I TO AMENDMENT TO GRAND RAPIDS 

CIVIC AUDITORIUM AND CONVENTION ENTERTAINMENT 

CENTER LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

THIS ADDENDUM I TO AMENDMENT TO GRAND RAPIDS CIVIC 

AUDITORIUM AND CONVENTION ENTERTAINMENT CENTER LEASE 

AGREEMENT (“Addendum I”) is made as of February 7, 2020, by and between the GRAND 

RAPIDS – KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY, as successor to the City 

of Grand Rapids (the “CAA”), and the AMWAY HOTEL CORPORATION (“AHC”). 

RECITALS 

A. The CAA and AHC entered into an Amendment to Grand Rapids Civic Auditorium 

and Convention Entertainment Center Lease Agreement (the “Amendment”) dated December 11, 

2003. 

B. Pursuant to the provisions of the Amendment, the term of the Lease Agreement was 

amended, extending it to April 15, 2020. 

C. The CAA and AHC desire to extend the term of Lease Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the CAA and AHC agree, in consideration for their respective 

representations and conditions in the Lease Agreement and the Amendment, as follows: 

Section 1. Extension of Term of Lease Agreement.  The term of the Lease 

Agreement is extended to and including June 30, 2020. 

Section 2. Ratification.  Except as otherwise amended by this Attachment I, the Lease 

Agreement and the Amendment are hereby ratified and confirmed. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CAA and AHC have caused these presents to be signed 

by their respective duly authorized person as of the day and year first written above. 

GRAND RAPIDS – KENT COUNTY 

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

By:         

 Steven Heacock, Chairperson 

 

AMWAY HOTEL CORPORATION 

 

 

 

By:         

  

 Its:       


	Agenda.CAA.pdf (p.1)
	January.2020.pdf (p.2-4)
	December 2019.pdf (p.5-13)
	SMG Financial Statement.December 2019.pdf (p.14-29)
	SMG - 2nd Quarter Capital Roll.pdf (p.30)
	Memo - Auto Parking System Periodic Reporting-Jan2020.pdf (p.31-32)
	Resolution for Third Amendment to Memorandum of Understanding with Wine  Food Festival.pdf (p.33-34)
	Third Amendment to Memorandum of Understanding with Wine  Food Festival.pdf (p.35-36)
	Resolution Amendment to Marketing Agreement (003).pdf (p.37-38)
	Amendment to Marketing Services Agreement (003).pdf (p.39-40)
	Resolution Approving Annual Contribution to Deferred Compensation Plan (MacKeigan).pdf (p.41-43)
	Resolution Approving Addendum to Grand Rapids Civic Auditorium and Convention Entertainment Center Lease.pdf (p.44-45)
	Addendum I to Amendment to Lease Agreement for Civic Auditorium.pdf (p.46)

